
 
 

MEETING OF THE SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM 
ACCESSIBLE SERVICES ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

1255 Imperial Avenue, Suite 1000 
San Diego, CA  92101 

 
MINUTES 

 
June 18, 2020 

 
[Clerk’s note: Except where noted, public, staff and board member comments are paraphrased. Note that 
the meeting was conducted via webinar to comply with public health orders]. 
 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

 
Chair Sotelo-Solis called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. A roll call sheet listing the 
committee members in attendance is attached. 
 

2. Approval of the December 12, 2019 Meeting Minutes 
 
Chair Sotelo-Solis entertained a motion to approve the December 12, 2019 meeting 
minutes. Ms. Sharlene Ornelas moved to approve the minutes. Mr. Tom Doogan 
seconded the motion, and the vote was 11 to 0 in favor with Mr. Ferguson, Ms. Rice, and 
Mr. Rivas, not present at time of vote and Ms. Nancy Vera abstaining.  
 
Sharon Cooney, Chief Executive Officer, introduced herself and thanked the committee 
for all they have done. She noted that she looks forward to working with the committee in 
the future on transit projects.  
 

3. Public Comment   
 
No public comment 

 
4. Elevate SD 2020 (Jay Washburn) 

 
Mr. Jay Washburn, Manager of Paratransit and Minibus, provided an update on the 
ElevateSD 2020 efforts. He noted that the MTS Board of Directors formally decided not 
to pursue the ballot measure due to the COVID-19 public health and economic crisis. 
The Board advised staff instead to focus on responding to the COVID pandemic, helping 
people get back to work, and providing essential transit services to those who need it the 
most. Mr. Washburn did note that staff would continue the outreach process and keep 
the public engaged in the future of transportation. He stated that any updates would be 
provided to the committee.  

  
Action Taken  
 
No action taken. Informational item only. 

 
5. COVID-19 Response and Update (Jay Washburn) 
  

 
 



Accessible Services Advisory Committee – MINUTES 
June 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 

 
 

 
Mr. Washburn provided a presentation on the COVID-19 procedures put in place for 
MTS Access. He discussed the procedures and requirements for MTS Access staff; 
vehicle cleaning standards and procedures; procedures and requirements put in place 
for clients who use the service; and the procedures and requirements for MTS Access 
eligibility.  

 
 Ms. Sharlene Ornelas commented that it may be difficult for people with visual and 

cognitive disabilities to participate in virtual assessments for paratransit eligibility and to 
take that into consideration. Mr. Washburn responded by saying that MTS would take 
those items into consideration. He noted that applicants would be able to have a 
caregiver or personal care attendant assist them during the virtual interview similar to an 
in-person assessment. He explained that MTS is still working through the process. Ms. 
Ornelas thanked Mr. Washburn and noted that not every applicant will have a caregiver 
available at the time of the interview. Ms. Callie Anderson thanked Ms. Ornelas for her 
comments and noted assessments will be accessible to all applicants.  

 
 Chair Sotelo-Solis thanked staff for the presentation. She shared that as we continue to 

increase the County of San Diego’s T3 efforts (testing, tracing, treatment), National City 
has a partnership with San Ysidro Health Center to do free testing Monday through 
Friday. She noted the County provides testing on Sundays and testing is also available 
at Samahan and Paradise Valley Hospital. Chair Sotelo-Solis noted everyone has to 
have an appointment made so that the process goes faster. She stated to call 211 for 
additional information on other testing sites.  

 
Chair Sotelo-Solis asked how the medical community is addressing telemedicine issues 
with those that are visually impaired who may not have a caregiver available to aid. Mr. 
Washburn explained that assistance could be provided by a family member, friend, etc. 
He noted that that would only be limited to who the applicant would like to assist them. 
 
Action Taken  
 
No action taken. Informational item only 

 
6. MTS Access Software Enhancements (Jay Washburn) 

 
Mr. Washburn provided a presentation on the MTS Access software enhancements. He 
provided details on the Interactive Voice Response (IVR) module; MTS Access WEB; 
and the MTS Access Wallet module. He provided examples of the features of each 
module and asked if there were any comments or questions.  
 
Ms. Marissa Lucero noted that the enhancements sounded great. She asked if the 
modules would be accessible on phones for those who are visually impaired. Mr. 
Washburn explained that each website is designed to be compliant for those who are 
visually impaired. He also noted that passengers wouldn’t have to show if their fare has 
been paid since the driver would be able to see that on their mobile data terminal. Ms. 
Lucero asked if there are plans to have someone test the modules with voice over. Mr. 
Washburn responded by saying yes. Mr. Washburn introduced Samantha Leslie, Staff 
Attorney, to provide a presentation on the Taxi Administration Grant. Chair Sotelo-Solis 
asked if anyone other than the passenger can fund the MTS Access wallet. Mr. 



Accessible Services Advisory Committee – MINUTES 
June 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 

 
 

Washburn said that anyone can fund the account as long as they have the login 
information.  
 
Ms. Leslie provided a presentation on the Taxi Administration Grant. She discussed the 
background of the grant, pilot goal, and the overall pilot program. She then provided an 
example of how the MTS mobile ticketing app can be used to plan and purchase 
complete trips using both public transportation and taxicabs. Ms. Leslie then discussed 
the timeline of the grant application, the grant funds and what each of the two phases 
consists of if grant is approved.  
 
Chair Sotelo-Solis asked if any of the grant funds could be allocated to outreach or 
engagements particularly to this committee. Ms. Leslie responded by saying that the 
phase one scope wasn’t narrowed to who MTS could reach out to. She noted that a list 
was provided to UCSD of all community organizations that MTS communicated with 
during the ElevateSD. She also noted that many of the community organizations on the 
list included ASAC members. Chair Sotelo-Solis noted it’s great to have a large list. She 
stated it would be beneficial to have an outreach event at this committee. 
 
Ms. Lucero said that this grant is a great idea and asked if the taxi accessible options 
would only be available from the Trolley or would it also be available from a bus stop for 
the last mile of a trip. Ms. Leslie explained that pilot would only be available from the 
Mid-Coast Trolley Stations. She noted if the pilot is successful, then it would be 
expanded to bus stops. Ms. Lucero asked what Mid-Coast stations Ms. Leslie was 
referring to. Ms. Leslie explained it’s the stations on the blue line extension from Old 
Town to UTC. She noted that this option will be available sometime in the Fall of 2021.  
 
Chair Sotelo-Solis thanked Ms. Leslie for her presentation. 

 
7. ADA Paratransit Reports   
  

MTS Access and MTM monthly reports attached.  
 

Chair Sotelo-Solis asked staff if anything stood out on the reports. Mr. Washburn said 
that the only significant change was ridership decline due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
He noted that MTS Access ridership was down over 90% in June 2020. 

 
Action Taken  
 
No action taken. Informational item only. 

        
8. Fixed-Route Reports           
  

Fixed route monthly reports attached. 
 

Chair Sotelo-Solis asked staff if anything stood out on the reports. Mr. Washburn noted 
that similar to the previous reports, the most significant change was to ridership. He 
them provided a brief overview on each report.   

 
Action Taken  
 
No action taken. Informational item only. 



Accessible Services Advisory Committee – MINUTES 
June 18, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 
9. Committee Member Communications/Comments 

 
Ms. Ornelas noted that the front signs on the Trolleys are missing the line icons. She 
explained that people who are color blind are unable to tell a difference between the 
colors, especially on the older signs that are faded. Mr. Doogan explained that the issue 
was brought up to the marketing department after the last meeting. He noted that the 
removal of the icon was an oversight and marketing is working on printing new signage 
with each icon. Chair Sotelo-Solis asked about the timeline for the new signage. Mr. 
Doogan said he would follow up with marketing and provide an update to the committee. 
 
Ms. Anderson noted that MTM is still receiving applications for MTS Access. She 
discussed the current procedures when processing MTS Access eligibility applications. 
She noted that it is important applicant’s fills out all fields on both part A and B of the 
applications. She explained having everything filled out will expedite the process.  
 
Chair Sotelo-Solis thanked the committee for the meeting. She stated it is important for 
MTS staff to be available to the committee as we move forward in transportation. 
 
Ms. Lucero thanked MTS for making clients feel safe during the pandemic. She noted 
that communication on the buses and trolleys are very important during this time. She 
explained that sometimes there is difficulty with the automated and driver 
announcements which impacts clients. Mr. Washburn explained that the automated 
announcements are part of the driver’s daily checks before they go into service. He 
noted that sometimes there are malfunctions which are addressed immediately. Chair 
Sotelo-Solis asked if there is a policy that has a time-line for repairs. Mr. Washburn 
stated he would follow up with in-house operations on the time-line. Chair Sotelo-Solis 
asked staff to follow up on the questions asked during this meeting within a few weeks. 
She asked if staff could set up a tutorial on how to use the Pronto App as well as 
tutorials on future technology projects. Ms. Leslie noted she would look to see how this 
could be incorporated into the grant.  
  

10.  Adjourn  
 
Chair Sotelo-Solis adjourned the meeting at 1:54pm. 
 
 

 
/s/ Alejandra Sotelo-Solis___________  
Chairperson 
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System 
 
 
Filed by:        
 
/s/ Vassilena Lerinska    
Clerk of ASAC         
San Diego Metropolitan Transit System 

 
Attachments:  
Roll Call Sheet  



 
 

SAN DIEGO METROPOLITAN TRANSIT SYSTEM  
ACCESSIBLE SERVICES ADVISORY COMMITTEE (ASAC) MEETING 

ROLL CALL  
 

 
MEETING OF (DATE):  6/18/2020 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER (TIME): 1:00pm                 ADJOURN (TIME): 1:54pm 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBER (Alternate) ORGANIZATION 
PRESENT 

(TIME 
ARRIVED) 

ABSENT 
(TIME 
LEFT) 

Alejandra Sotelo-Solis ☒                                 ☐              ASAC Chair 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Nancy Vera ☒  Amy Kalivas ☐ Access to Independence 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Arun Prem ☐  Jonathan Albarran ☒ FACT (CTSA) 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Debbie Marshall ☒   ☐ State Council on Developmental Disabilities 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Bill Lewis ☒  Juan Lopez ☐ Transdev - Contracted Bus Routes 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Callie Anderson ☒ Heriberto Gaytan   ☐ MTM, Inc 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Anthony Ferguson ☐ Jorge Malone ☐ San Diego Regional Center   

Marissa Lucero ☒  Elsa Caballero        ☐ San Diego Center for the Blind 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Laura Sampson               ☒  Kevin Marques ☐ First Transit, Inc. (MTS Access) 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Lisa Madsen                    ☐  Zachary Rivera ☒ SANDAG 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Vacant ☐  ☐ County of San Diego AIS   

Vacant ☐                          ☐ Caltrans   

Sharlene Ornelas ☒ Tanya Azevedo       ☐  Paratransit Consumer 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Jorge Rivas ☐                        ☐ Fixed Route Consumer   

Tom Doogan ☒  ☐ MTS Trolley 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Belinda Kelly ☒                          ☐ MTS Bus 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Allie Rice ☐                          ☐ Deaf Community Services   

Betsy Knight ☒   Mary Benson         ☐ County of San Diego Behavioral Health 
Services 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Vassy Lerinska ☒                  non-voting MTS Contracted Services 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Jay Washburn                  ☒                 non-voting MTS Contracted Services 1:00pm 1:54pm 

Samantha Leslie             ☒                 non-voting MTS Legal 1:00pm 1:54pm 

 
 
 
 

CLERK OF ASAC: /s/ Vassilena Lerinska              PARATRANSIT AND MINIBUS MANAGER: /s/ Jay Washburn______________              


